July 20, 2011
EA-08-158

John E. Sisson

President

Quality Inspection Services, Inc.
37 Franklin Street

Suite 400

Buffalo, NY 14202

SUBJECT: STATUS OF COMPLETION OF TERMS IN THE NRC CONFIRMATORY
ORDER DATED MARCH 10, 2009

Dear Mr. Sisson:

The purpose of this letter is to acknowledge the actions Quality Inspection Services, Inc.

(QISI) has taken in response to the Confirmatory Order (Order) (ADAMS Accession No.
ML090650170") issued to you by the U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission (NRC) on March 10,
2009. The actions were taken to fulfill commitments that were made as part of a settlement
agreement reached during a January 22, 2009, Alternative Dispute Resolution (ADR) mediation
session between QISI and the NRC. QISI requested the ADR mediation session in response to
a letter the NRC issued on September 15, 2008 (ML082610446), which forwarded a Notice of
Violation and Proposed Imposition of Civil Penalty (Notice) documenting four violations of NRC
requirements, each of which was classified at Severity Level lll, and one of which was
considered to have been willful. The NRC proposed a $6,500 civil penalty for the willful violation,
which involved QISI failing to maintain utilization logs for sealed sources, as required by 10 CFR
34.71.

As part of the settlement agreement, QISI agreed to take a number of actions including:

(1) revising the existing Operations and Emergency (O&E) Manual to emphasize the importance
of safe performance of radiography, strict compliance with requirements, being complete and
accurate in all communications, and understanding that engaging in any willful misconduct
would not be tolerated; (2) retraining all employees regarding the revisions to the O&E Manual;
(3) adding a radiation safety component to the existing Corporate Newsletter, to be issued at
least quarterly, focusing on radiation safety updates; (4) developing a video recording that would
include the message emphasizing the importance of safety and compliance with the
requirements, would be required viewing for all company employees who are involved in any
manner in activities subject to NRC jurisdiction, and would be placed on the QISI website for
employee viewing and access; (5) placing the video on the QISI public website, and offering to
make the video available for a presentation at a national industry conference; (6) increasing the
audits of each of the radiographers working in areas of NRC jurisdiction to three times annually

! Designation in parentheses refers to an Agencywide Documents Access and Management System (ADAMS)
accession number. Most of the documents referenced in this letter are publicly-available using the accession number
in ADAMS (exceptions to public availability are noted).
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for two years following issuance of this Confirmatory Order, and having these audits conducted
by the Corporate Radiation Safety Officer (RSO); and, (7) including, as part of the next two NRC
required annual reviews of the radiation safety program, an inquiry (independent of the
Corporate RSO), of all radiographers working in NRC jurisdiction, to assess the effectiveness of
adherence to NRC requirements. In recognition of these actions, as well as those corrective
actions QISI had already completed by the time of the settlement agreement, the NRC agreed
to reduce the civil penalty amount to $500, and QISI agreed to pay this amount.

Each of the commitments contained in the Order have been satisfied to date, with the exception
of item 6. Specifically, the Order required, in Section V.F., that QISI increase the audits of each
of the radiographers working in areas of NRC jurisdiction to three times annually for two years
following issuance of this Confirmatory Order, and have these audits conducted by the
Corporate RSO. Although audits were conducted in 2009 and 2010, the 2009 audits were
conducted by the site RSO rather than the Corporate RSO. In a letter submitted to the NRC by
QISI, dated May 23, 2011 (ML111460499), Mr. Douglas Miskell, Corporate RSO, provided an
explanation regarding why he had not conducted the audits in 2009, including that the
requirement was misunderstood and it was thought that the site RSO could conduct the audits
with the Corporate RSQO’s involvement and oversight. QISI also noted that the audits were
indeed conducted at least three times in 2009 between March and December, with the
Corporate RSO'’s involvement, and that no violations had been identified by the NRC during the
inspections conducted since 2009.

The NRC has reviewed QISI's submittal and has determined that QISI may not take credit for
the audits conducted in 2009 for meeting Order item V.F. Although the Corporate RSO was
involved in the audits conducted by the site RSO in 2009, the Order required that the audits be
conducted by the Corporate RSO to ensure adequate, objective oversight of the radiography
activities, considering that the site RSO contributed to the violation of 10 CFR 34.71 which
occurred in 2007, and was, in part, the basis of the proposed civil penalty. Therefore, the NRC
expects that QISI comply with item V.F., by conducting three audits of radiographers working in
areas on NRC jurisdiction by the end of 2011. The NRC will continue assessing compliance
with the Order until this item is completed. Your cooperation in this matter is appreciated.

A copy of this letter and its enclosure will be made available electronically for public inspection
in the NRC Public Document Room located at NRC Headquarters in Rockville, MD, and from
ADAMS. ADAMS is accessible from the NRC Web site at http://www.nrc.gov/reading-
rm/adams.html. Your response, if you choose to provide one, will also be made available
electronically for public inspection in the NRC Public Document Room or from the NRC’s
document system (ADAMS).
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If you have any questions or comments, please contact Blake Welling, Chief, Industrial Branch,
Division of Nuclear Materials Safety, Region |, at 610-337-5205.

Sincerely,

/RA/

William M. Dean

Regional Administrator
cc:

Douglas Miskell, Corporate Radiation Safety Officer
State of New York
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